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PROCEEDINGS: 

MR. ROBINSON:  Good evening, everybody.  We're going to call the meeting to order.  In terms of the agenda are there any agenda review items that are up for discussion?

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.  I would like to add an item right after the CSV and DTSC Q&A and before the break.  I expect it to take five minutes, and it is an inquiry to DTSC on the summary of violations issued to Zeneca and UC on June 30th, 2007.  We'd like an update.  And after that update I propose a short discussion about our response.

MR. ROBINSON:  Very good.  So are you proposing that we actually make a change to the agenda and resubmit?

MS. PADGETT:  I am.  I would like to have it be agendized so that it shows up with its own line item.  So it would be a resubmission or a change in the actual agenda, and it has its own little five‑minute line.

MR. ROBINSON:  Will do.

MS. COOK:  My update is going to be about five seconds on that agenda item. 

MR. ROBINSON:  We'll still give you five minutes.

MS. COOK:  It's going to be more of an intro.  I can't have that conversation.

MR. ROBINSON:  In terms of the parliamentary procedure, one comment that I would like to make ‑‑ is that it for the agenda review? 

MAYOR MCLAUGHLIN:  Do we make a vote on adding the agenda item?

MR. ROBINSON:  That is a good idea. 

MR. ALCAREZ:  I second it, but I was going to tell you if you want to just post a copy on the wall as you come in, then you can say rather than go through this complete thing you just have to tell people that it is on the wall, and if there is any additions ‑‑ that way it is in their mind when they come in. 

MR. ROBINSON:  That is a good suggestion.  All in favor, say aye.  All against?  The motion passes.  One procedural item that I wanted to talk about was the parliamentary procedure for motions.  I asked Carolyn to run the parliamentary procedure for motions so that it gets into the minutes in a consistent and accurate manner.  She agreed to do that.  She's going to be late, so I'll be doing it.  But from here on that's how it will work.  Any other comments before we get under way?  Kay, it is all yours.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  To those of you who have not met me before, my name is Kay Wallis, and I am very pleased to be the facilitator for this meeting of the Richmond Southeast Shoreline Area Community Advisory Group.  As facilitator I am not uninterested, certainly, but I am disinterested in the proceeding.  I will contribute nothing to the content, but I will be focused on two things, keeping the meeting on time and keeping the meeting on topic.  When we say on time, we mean to adjourn by 9:00 p.m. this evening.  And when we say on topic, that is to follow the agenda that hopefully you all have been able to get a copy of in the back of the room.  We've had an item added to the agenda.  So after this agenda and process review we will, as usual, go into the Cherokee Simeon Ventures update followed by the DTSC update, and that will be followed by a joint question‑and‑answer session for CAG members and members of the public to ask questions of CSV and DTSC staff.  We will then have our new agenda item immediately followed by five minutes devoted to an inquiry to DTSC on the summary of violations.  And then we will go to a ten‑minute break.  

When we resume from the break we will go to a presentation to the UC RFS presentation of the marsh area, and that will be followed by a ten‑minute question‑and‑answer period, again, hopefully accommodating both questions from the CAG and from the public.  We'll then move on to the Toxics Committee update.  There will be a ten‑minute public comment period which follows, and then we will conclude the last 15 minutes of the meeting with approval of prior meeting minutes, action items, and general wrap‑up.  

I would like to go over, before we begin, a couple of process points.  Many of you have become familiar with these in our last few minutes.  And they seemed to have served us very well.  So I will just review them quickly for those who are new this evening.  When we get to periods of time when there is questions and comments for speakers or for anything that has taken place, we have tried to keep a two‑minute time limit to the person posing the question or the comment.  

I have a timer which helps us to keep track of that.  It helps us to stay on time and helps people to think about organizing their thoughts into a two‑minute timeframe.  We have some green question slips that are available to both CAG members and there are some in the back for audience members.  Those are one way even as you are thinking about your questions or comments, just to organize your thoughts, and you could even refer to them as you pose your question or comment.  

They also serve as a nice way that if for some reason we are not able to get to all of the questions or all the comments in a given period of time, it is a nice way to capture your question or comment.  Then we give it to the CAG secretary, and then it is referred to the appropriate speaker or committee or person or party that can then provide a follow‑up answer.  So those green slips are for that purpose.  

During the course of the meeting we have things that come up that we want to be sure to get so that we can do additional follow up either after the meeting or in some kind of timeframe.  And we also have things come up during the meeting that we just can't accommodate within the agenda as planned.  We have a list called the action item list.  This is a place where during the meeting if things come up we want to make sure follow‑up action for things that couldn't be addressed at this particular meeting, those are the place those can be recorded.  We always record a time‑line, a sort of next step, and a person who is going to be responsible for seeing that that next step is taken.  So we will be recording things up here on the action list.  

So we talked about a two‑minute time limitation for questions and comments.  We talked about using green question slips to record your questions and comments and the use of the action item list.  We have refreshments in the back, as usual.  Thank you to Brook Street for providing those and to our anonymous donor.  Are there any questions about our agenda or our process this evening?

MR. ROBINSON:  Kay, one thing I want to remind you of is that during the Cherokee and DTSC presentation, Doug will require most of the time, that half‑hour.  So just to remind you of that.   

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you for that reminder.  So I think then we will go immediately into our first agenda item, which is the Cherokee/Simeon Venture update.  And I will call on Mr. Mosteller. 

MR. MOSTELLER:  Thank you very much.  I am going to turn on this right here and get my water out of the way.  Great.  Thank you.  While this is warming up, I am going to pull up ‑‑ first of all, I want to thank the CAG for the opportunity to give a presentation on the Lot Three RI.  So I appreciate that also while we are waiting for some things to come up over the screen here I will give a brief update on just the activity.  This is out of the DTSC report on the activities completed within the last month.  

So, basically, the activities in the past month include ‑‑ these are things that I have mentioned in the past, but we did a magnetic anomaly investigation at the end of South 49th Street as well as in the area of the PCB/VOC RAW area.  And we submitted that report to the DTSC.  

We also provided to the DTSC the groundwater investigation results where we analyzed groundwater for radiological constituents.  We provided that report to the DTSC and also provided the 2007 groundwater monitoring report.  So this basically reports on the groundwater monitoring for the past year across the site that was provided.  

With respect to some of the field work, we did an investigation on the southeast parcel.  I can ‑‑ I might be able to do this with this laser pointer.  Kay, I don't want to blind you here.  I am going to go right behind you.  There is the southeast parcel right there.  So we did an investigation there where we sampled soil and groundwater.  

And also within the last week we collected some pore water samples within East Stege Marsh.  This is an activity we did once before.  We got the results back.  When we did the activity before it was during the ‑‑ a dry season when we had not experienced very much rain.  This activity was done ‑‑ of course this is within the rainy period or the tail end of the rainy period.  So we repeated that activity.  And then one of the ‑‑ a milestone for us also within the past month was that the Lot One‑Two Remedial Investigation report was approved.  So that was a result of over a year and a half of investigations and reporting and some feedback loop of comments and response to comments.  So we are pretty excited about that.  

Within the coming ‑‑ so within the coming month we will be providing multiple reports regarding radiological.  One report will come from Zeneca and one report will come from CSV.  The report from CSV is regarding a radiological scan of the entire uplands portion of the site, so basically the whole area right here.  Everything that we could access we went across and did what is referred to as a gamma scan.  We did that across the entire site.  So those results will be provided. 

Once we get that information in, I think it would probably be a good time for us to all check back in after the CAG has an opportunity to review these reports and we get a couple of things worked out logistically.  It would probably be a good time to check back in and discuss the contents of those reports and discuss what the next steps will be.  I am sure that is something we will want to be coordinating with the CAG.  Lastly, the DTSC is continuing to address comments on the RAW.  

With that, now that the presentation is up, I just want to remind everybody that the slides are available in the back if you want.  Maybe I can grab them.  If you want to take notes on them, if that makes sense, I have got two copies right here I can provide.  And so this presentation is intended to focus on the Lot Three Remedial Investigation and similar ‑‑ okay.  It's going to be somewhat similar in nature to the presentation that I provided, I think it was two months ago on the Lot One‑Two Remedial Investigation in the sense that it is going to go through the following agenda of really talking about what is a Remedial Investigation, the investigations that we completed, the investigation results, and that is going to be a fairly big picture with respect to the investigation results, and then talking about what the next steps will be.  

So this is a slide you probably saw the last time.  One is a Remedial Investigation.  We're out there and we are collecting data.  And I want to talk about the types of data that we do collect in the next slide.  But by collecting this information we can identify sources of contamination.  Once we identify the sources we can figure out how far do they spread out, so the horizontal extent, and how deep do they go, the vertical extent.  

Once we have that information we can also use the data to evaluate the risk that may be posed by the things that we are detecting.  

The things that we are looking for are contaminants or constituents within various media types which include soil, soil gas and groundwater.  So this slide is really meant to represent how we might collect those samples.  So a soil sample is collected, so this is ground surface right here, as you can see the tree growing right there.  So a soil sample could be collected at discrete depth intervals below the depth surface.  In our Remedial Investigation we collect, say, at the one foot below ground, three‑foot, maybe five‑foot discrete samples at depth intervals.  That's what this box is meant to represent.  

For the soil gas what we are doing there is ‑‑ we put a ‑‑ effectively we think of it as a piece of PCP pipe into the ground and at the bottom of that, right here.  Down here, it is screened.  What that screen allows us to do is when we allow a vacuum to the top right here, we suck in some of the gas.  And I will get to this picture in a second.  

There is air in between all of the soil particles.  So if you have contamination, especially a contaminant known as a Volatile Organic Compound, if you have some ‑‑ that is referred to as a VOC.  So if you have a VOC right here, for example, we are going to be able to pick that up by applying that vacuum and then collecting that gas sample and having that analyzed.  That is a classification of compounds that, you know, I am going to discuss a little bit later.  

And then lastly, we had groundwater samples, and so a similar type of thing, you can have PVC or you can have steel or something like that installed down through the surface.  And then we get into what is known as the water table.  And when we ‑‑ when there are two ways ‑‑ well, there are more than two ways you can go about collecting the sample here.  One way is use a thing called a bailer.  You drop it down into a well, and it is about this long.  It is about three feet long.  And you drop it down in there, it fills up with water, you pull it out, you actually evaluate this space several times, and then you collect the sample and pour it into little vials and send it to the lab for analysis. 

MS. PADGETT:  Can I ask a question now?  At the site, this site specifically, you have three levels of groundwater.  You have the upper horizon, the lower horizon, and the deep water.  How does it relate to this picture? 

MR. MOSTELLER:  So if we are to consider what we have out at the site, on Lots One and Two, right up in here, the depth from here down to here is in the range of about five to six, seven feet.  Okay.  When we get into the Lot Three area right here where the tree and cinders are placed ‑‑ and I will talk about that a little more ‑‑ that is the gray area that is mounted up.  The depth of water from here to here is about ten feet.  It is in that range.  

So to answer Sherry's question, is there are two horizons out here that we refer to in the Remedial Investigation report as the upper horizon and the lower horizon.  The upper horizon tends to be ‑‑ if this page were to go further down, upper horizon would be probably maxing out at about 30 feet below ground surface from here down to here.  And now I am way off the page, but the lower horizon would be below that.  

So if we were to collect ‑‑ this sample, this well right here, this representation of a monitoring well, if this were out at our site we would consider this taking a sample that would be representative of the upper horizon.  If we were to take a sample of the lower horizon, this screened interval would be way down here, and it would be somewhere in the range of about 40 feet below ground surface.  And then the deep‑deep is even further below that.  

So now just kind of pointing your attention over here, again, these are just representations of what we are really trying to find.  And the bottom line is that if we have contamination from a surface release, there are different ways that this contamination can reach all the way down to the groundwater.  It can have enough volume to actually reach down there in a pure product sense, or, over time and with infiltration from rain water, you can actually get more dissolved, so it would be lower concentration reaching into the groundwater. 

The objective with the well is to identify and zero in on really where was this release.  So the whole focus is ‑‑ this would be the source area, and one of the focus ‑‑ one of the ideas of the RI is to identify these types of areas so you can figure out what is the risk associated with it and if there is a risk associated with it, then a Feasibility Study and a Remedial Action Plan.  We figure out what are we are going to do about it, what can we do about it.  

This is a figure that is meant to represent ‑‑ first of all, I should just point out what we referred to as the Lot Three area.  And the Lot Three area is this entire area I am just outlining here.  The black dots that are on this figure represent all the locations where a sample was collected, whether it be a soil sample, a soil gas sample, or a groundwater sample. 

And in some of the areas you see a higher density that would be representative of areas where we found a source.  So we are really trying to zero in on exactly what that source is.  Once we zero in on it that helps us identify what the best method is to actually do some remedial actions.  

As I mentioned, we have three different media in which we collect samples, the soil gas, the soil, and the groundwater.  This table is really to represent and show the numbers of samples that we collected for each of the different media and then the types of things that we analyzed for.  So, for example, soil gas you could see 27, total sample soil almost 300, and ground water 80 plus.  On the far right side, the analytical groups, the darker color right here and these, and these are meant to represent those at each one of these samples, these different analytical ‑‑ these different analyses were completed.  The ones in the blue, these analyses are completed at a subset of that group.  

So this is ‑‑ you know, after collecting all that information, what do we find?  What do we come up with?  Well, there are four different types of conditions that we identified within the Lot Three area.  There are metals in soil, there are VOCs, Volatile Organic Compounds in groundwater or pesticides in groundwater, and there are metals in groundwater.  These are the conditions on the far left‑hand column.

These are some representative areas of where these conditions were found, and I have some subsequent slides here, and I am going to highlight where some of these areas are.  And then last we have the sources.  The metals and sources were largely caused by cinders.  This is a pyrite quarry.  This goes back to the history of the property that dates back into the late 1800s when pyrite ore was brought in for sulphuric acid production.  

Once they did all of their processing they were placed throughout the property.  So they created ‑‑ when you did that, then the metals that were within that were kind of leached out and they impacted the soil and also impacted the groundwater, as you can see down here.  That is largely the source of the metals in soil, the VOCs in groundwater, industrial operations, above‑ground storage tanks. 

Same for pesticides.  There are pesticide storage tanks, then the metals in groundwater.  Again, there was ‑‑ the root of that is from the pyrite or cinders.  So I think most people are familiar with this, but the metals in soil are underneath this area.  And so that ‑‑ if I go over to the aerial photograph, the metals in soil are underneath in that gray area.  We call it the treated cinder area.  It is covered with a temporary cap.  So those cinders that ‑‑ the treated ore or the ore that caused the issue in the first place was excavated.  It was mixed with limestone and placed within this area.  So that's where the metals and soils are located.  

The VOCs ‑‑ now there are a number of different VOCs, Volatile Organic Compounds, that we detected at the property.  I am going to show three of them that are probably ‑‑ that we detected the most and that were there in the greatest.  So the three compounds you are going to see maps of include TCE, trichloroethylene, PCE, tetrachloroethylene, and then 1‑2 DCA, 1‑2 dichloroethane. 

These are all industrial solvents.  TCE is probably the most common industrial solvent that is detected in impacted groundwaters across the United States.  What I have highlighted here are the different areas where TCE was detected.  These areas are referred to within the RI, and then they are further evaluated in the risk assessment and we are evaluating them right now in the SS RAP.  

So the MW 19, the monitoring Well 19 area is right here.  The Lot Three 31 area is right here, and then this is the Three 33, Three 34 area.  What these things represent are the locations.  So, for example, you see all these dots out here.  That's where we collected a sample, a groundwater sample.  So the Lot Three 33 is the location identifier.  So that is how ‑‑ that's where we detected it.  That is our I.D.  We have that GPS'd.  We can go back in this area and resample if and when we need to.  And, you know, that is the case for all of these.  So that is how we refer to some of these areas.  

So, again, I mentioned that PCE was another one of the constituents that we detected at higher frequency throughout the site, mostly right here in the MW 19 area and again, down here in the Lot Three 33 and Three 34 area.  One thing I should mention is these lines you see here, we refer to them as concentration contours.  

So what that means is by collecting all this information, that information out there, and we have ‑‑ now we know we have collected groundwater samples.  I will talk about this area right here.  We collected groundwater samples.  We detected PCE in the groundwater.  We start to plot those concentrations on the map.  And then we can figure out, okay, if you recall one of the purposes of the RI is to figure out what is the horizontal extent.  How far does it extend out?  These concentration contours help us with that because they represent the area within that ‑‑ for example, if this is a 100 part per billion or micrograms per liter ‑‑ that's how it is referred to ‑‑ that's a contour.  Everything within that contour you would expect to be greater than 100.  

This is just the last one for the VOCs in groundwater.  This is the MW 22 area. 

MS. PADGETT:  Doug, were all of these the upper horizon only? 

MR. MOSTELLER:  What you see right here on these figures are upper horizon groundwater figures.  That is largely where we detected the concentrations and also at the frequency in the lower horizon there are lower concentrations.  We do have figures in the RI that represent the lower horizon.  These are just meant to give you an idea and a sense of what we detected and some of the specific areas where they were detected.  

Moving on, there is ‑‑ if you recall one of the conditions is pesticides in groundwater, and that was detected right here, at what we refer to as the Lot Three 28 area.  And again, metals ‑‑ this is just one metal as a representative figure to show where we ‑‑ excuse me ‑‑ detected some of the higher concentrations.  Some of the higher concentrations of metals are detected right in here.  The Lot Three 10, this is Three 10 and this is Three 17, the Three 10 and Three 17 areas.

MS. SHIPMAN:  Doug, do you mind going back to that figure for a second and just reminding us what the yellow and the gray are?

MR. MOSTELLER:  That is a good question.  That was brought up to me earlier today.  This actually gets to the metals in the soil.  So all of these yellow areas right here is where ‑‑ that is where, if you recall, I said that, you know, dating back to the history of the property, this pyrite ore was brought down and used for sulfuric acid production.  Well, when they were finished using it it was scattered throughout the site.  So the areas where you see the yellow is actually where this ‑‑ I'll call it the spent ore was placed and where it was then later excavated as part of the remedial efforts that Zeneca completed.  

So in all of these brown areas or yellow areas, that's where cinders were placed.  And then that's when they were excavated, mixed with the limestone, and then they now exist underneath this area where you have the cross‑hatching also referred to as the treated cinder area.  

And then some of these other areas where you see the gray, these also show where past remedial activities occurred.  In fact, this is where just some soil excavation was completed.  So, for example, right here, this is where the pesticide production facility was, and that is that Lot Three 28 area.  Okay.  So there were pesticides in the soil.  They were excavated and hauled off the site.  I should have explained that earlier. 

MS. SHIPMAN:  Yes, thank you.

MR. MOSTELLER:  These maps have almost a mind‑boggling amount of information on them, and they are a little busy.  This, again, is a repeat of the slide we saw earlier.  It is just reiterating and summarizing really, again, what our conditions were, our metals in soil, our VOCs in groundwater, pesticides in groundwater, and metals in groundwater.  

And for all of the follow‑up activities throughout the presentation I mentioned that now we know what is there and where it is, and the Human Health Risk Assessment evaluates what is the risk associated with that.  So we are in the process of addressing DTSC comments right now.  And the Feasibility Remedial Action Plan is listed right here as a follow‑up activity.  That is in process.  That Feasibility Remedial Action Plan helps us figure out what can we do about it.  

Some of the other things for the VOC's in groundwater, we have the ongoing groundwater monitoring.  Actually, for all the VOC's pesticides in groundwater we have ongoing groundwater monitoring.  And then we will be evaluating, you know, pilot studies for the VOCs in the groundwater as we move forward.  

And pilot studies are really ‑‑ the Feasibility Study says, "Okay, you can do certain things, but a pilot study would help us understand what is the best way to address the remediation of those compounds."  So going forward through the next steps for the Lot Three RI, DTSC has provided us with comments.  

We are addressing those comments right now and we will be submitting them back to the DTSC.  If they agree with ‑‑ I shouldn't say "agree."  If they have no further comments on our responses, you know, as part of their review, they would then approve the Lot Three RI report, and with that would come ‑‑ they would issue an RI fact sheet.  So it would be a fact sheet similar to that that was distributed for the Lot One‑Two RI report.  

We are going to continue our groundwater monitoring.  As I mentioned, we are going to evaluate pilot studies, particularly for the VOCs in the groundwater.  And then we will continue to address the comments in the risk assessment.  And we are in the process of working on our Feasibility Study and the Remedial Action Plan.  So that is the presentation for today.  Hopefully I did it on time, but I don't think I did.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  As was mentioned by our chair, it was planned that the Cherokee Simeon update would occupy most of the joint time; however there is about five minutes left, and I will hand it to Ms. Cook for the DTSC update. 

MS. COOK:  I could actually do it in five minutes, but she would be upset with me.  She would actually yell at me.  So Mark and Karen, let me just go ahead and try to cover it all that way; otherwise going back and forth is going to cause problems.  You covered what was completed in the last 30 days.  Okay.  So let me go on directly to the Harbor Front aspect.  

The Department is ‑‑ this is a state‑funded project that we are working on.  We finalized the technical memorandum that should have been done a long time ago in August.  It's being done right now.  We are also in the process of finalizing the sampling workplan for the Pacific Hard Chrome site ‑‑ I am not even going to try to map it ‑‑ but it is basically the business park area over there.  We believe that is the source of Chromium 6 contamination that we had found in the underlying groundwater. 

So we have a sampling plan where we want to get a better handle of what type of contamination exists there, and once we define it we plan to move forward to remove that contamination.  

UC Richmond Field Station, I am going to just briefly cover that since they are giving presentations tonight, if there are any questions I would just ask maybe we could refer them directly to the UC people tonight.  

Basically the Department is reviewing the Current Condition report ongoing.  We also, as part of the second bullet ‑‑ I think this is the primary ‑‑ the biggest bullet that I would like to point out to you.  The second bullet within here is there was some soil sampling done and some ash piles were found.  Within those ash piles found there are elevated levels of PCBs.  Because they are on the surface we want to remove those immediately.  So we have asked the UC Richard Field Station to put together what is called a time‑critical removal plan that is laid out under the federal process which is going to be submitted to the Department.  

And basically there is no review time in a time‑critical removal.  If we require it to be brought to us, we will bring it out.  We will provide input and they will answer any questions, but there will not be any public review time for it nor will there be a public meeting associated with it.  It is very important for us to have these PCBs removed as quickly as possible to eliminate any type of direct exposure pathway.  

The UC site is also working on some weed abatement activities that are going on right now as well as they requested use of the herbicide Aquamaster as a way of dealing with some of their invasive non‑native plants.

BioRad, they conducted a groundwater pilot study historically.  We are expecting to see that report in ‑‑ I guess it came in in February, so I guess we are reviewing that report, and we are also looking at the fourth quarter groundwater monitoring.  It was a very effective pilot study, but also a very costly way of doing business, so we are trying to look at other ways to deal with that contamination.  

The West shore area, we received the report on the 17 cubic yards of material.  And we have approved that report.  It has been uploaded into EnviroStor.  Marina Bay Area T, as part of the work that was done in the past there was some TPA type of material that was found at the groundwater.  So there is a draft amendment to the Remedial Action Plan which would allow the ability to remove free‑floating product that might be found as part of that.  We had groundwater monitoring wells there in place, and we have only had one hit, but we are monitoring it.  We want to make sure if something is found, a mechanism is put in place to address that problem.  So we are expecting that document to go out for public review in the mid‑May time period.  

Also, as we discussed in the last meeting the operation maintenance agreements.  These agreements that we had in the past are on hold while the five‑year review process is going through.  Harborway South, which is another property located at 738 Harborway South Property, it used to be a plating operation.  It is a state‑funded project.  The Department has sufficient money this year to try to address those contaminations.  We are looking at excavating any of the materials that are above standards, to remove them as well as treating some small amount of solvent contamination in situ by using a hydrogen‑releasing compound activity.  What that does is it actually breaks down the solvents by removing the chlorines all the way through the process.  

Liquid Gold is a process of ‑‑ it is a property on ‑‑ let's see, it is on the far East side of the property.  There were some groundwater sampling that was done out there, and hopefully the results are due in tomorrow.
Stege Pistol Range...  basically the Union Pacific has gone out there and done some additional sampling to better define the areas they are going to have to remove as part of addressing the pistol range operations that existed there.  We are expecting again, (inaudible) time period.  Primarily the contaminants here are lead, and I am not sure if they did clay pigeons out there.  Do you remember if they did clay pigeons?  Okay.  So we would be looking both for lead as well as PH ‑‑ 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  It is actually the pistol range. 

MS. COOK:  So solely lead.  Blair landfill, which is near where the pistol range is also, they did some soil gas sampling out there as a way of better defining what's going on with that, and we hope to get the sample results by the end of this month.  And that is it, and hopefully we are not too far behind.  You have a very full agenda.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you, Ms. Cook.  So we will open, then, the question‑and‑answer period for both Cherokee/Simeon Ventures and DTSC.  And we have allotted 10 ‑‑ excuse me, 20 minutes for that.  I will begin by taking questions from CAG members and then we will open it up.  Maybe I could get an idea just going into this.  Does anyone from the audience feel like they will have a comment or a question, just to gauge the amount of time.  Thank you.  So I saw Ms. Padgett's and Mr. Thompson's hand.  Ms. Padgett? 

MS. PADGETT:  I have a couple of comments or questions for DTSC, and it may take a follow‑up action.  I am not sure.  On the ‑‑ this relates to the Harbor Front Tract activities proposed for the next thirty days on the Weiss Associates revising the sampling plan for the former Pacific Hard Chrome sites.  It appears that a new tenant has moved into that location.  There are humans in that building.  And we, in addition to the suspected Chromium 6, we also know from other sampling in the neighborhood that we have got a VOC plume.  

So my question is and relates to the precautionary principle about people being in that building, and do we need to be doing anything to keep them safe.

MS. NAKASHIMA:  I am Lynn Nakashima from DTSC.  Soil gas samples have been previously collected around the building or in that area, and our toxicologist has done an assessment of what the risk would be and has found there is ‑‑ based on the results of the soil gas sampling that there isn't a risk to people working within that business park area.

MS. PADGETT:  Okay.  And the Chromium 6 will have no effect on those individuals either?

MS. NAKASHIMA:  No.  Actually, inside the building it is entirely paved, so nobody is in direct contact with the soil or anything like that.  

MS. PADGETT:  And the people who are in the soil operation behind that building?

MS. NAKASHIMA:  You mean that sort of junkyard?  

MS. PADGETT:  Yeah.  The junkyard area where they actually dig in the soil. 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  To what?  Which chemical? 

MS. PADGETT:  Right. 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  That area is not paved.  It is open.  So if anything would volatilize it would volatilize up.  But they are ‑‑ the risk was calculated for the entire area based on a commercial worker being there.

MS. PADGETT:  Okay. 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  So it would be the same answer for both properties. 

MS. PADGETT:  I have another follow‑up question relating to UC, and maybe UC will answer this or maybe you will, Lynn.  And it relates to, again, the precautionary principle of individuals being in the transition area.  And we were pleased that more soil sampling was done, especially in the top six inches of the soil in the transition area.  We asked this question in the last CAG meeting about the safety of individuals out there planting and having a report come back to tell us that there are elevated levels of PCBs from 1.77 and 8.44 parts per million.  And I think the limit is one part per million.  I think that is the acceptable level.  I am not sure.  Maybe you can tell us that.  It just ‑‑ to me this is just another reminder that we don't know everything we need to know about the characterization of the site at UC.  And to have workers, these are ‑‑ these are carpenters, plumbers, electricians, people who are working out in the field in UC in areas that have not fully characterized, I think we need to take more precaution with them than we have taken to date.  

It is a concern for all of us to look out for these individuals, and maybe this is just a general comment, but we have been asking this question about how to keep those people safe to find that we have got PCBs at such a high level that it is going to take a time‑critical removal action, much as we just had another time‑critical removal action in another area at UC where we found high levels of arsenic.  This is a reminder we don't know everything that is out there until the site is fully characterized.   

MR. BRODERSEN:  Is it okay to answer that?  I'm sorry.  I am Jason Brodersen.  So in the western transition area we did a couple of different types of sampling.  We did our site walk and we noted two areas were distinctly different than any other areas in the western transition area. 

MS. PADGETT:  Could you point to it over here on the map?

MR. BRODERSEN:  I can probably show it in my presentation. 

MS. PADGETT:  We don't need to go into it if you are going to talk about it later.  

MR. BRODERSEN:  Why don't I postpone the answer to the presentation? 

MS. PADGETT:  Great.

MR. THOMPSON:  One of my concerns is we have a natural barometer in these marshes.  All out in that area there at one time used to be ducks, used to have ducks coming in from Canada and elsewhere.  And they would somewhat hibernate around in that area there.  Now have you all did any kind of test on the wildlife, the birds, the rats, the worms to see just how those levels, whether they are consistent or not or what effect that they are having on the wildlife, that use that as a habitat during the different seasons? 

MS. COOK:  Which marsh?   

MR. THOMPSON:  Stege marsh.

MR. MOSTELLER:  West or east?  My answer will be brief.  The answer is no, we did not do any biological monitoring of animals.  

MR. HANS:  I'm Carl Hans with UC Berkeley Office of Environmental Health and Safety.  There has been some limited tissue sampling, primarily in invertebrates, in clams and crabs, but we haven't done any tissue sampling of birds or higher organisms, vertebrates.  The data that is available is in the ‑‑ I think it is in the ecological and Human Health Risk Assessment from 2001.

MS. WALLIS:  Other questions from CAG members?

MR. DOTSON:  What was found in the invertebrates?  

MR. HANS:  Off the top of my head I can't tell you what the levels were.  It wasn't a significant part of the risk assessment at the time.  Okay.  Carl Hans again.  Off the top of my head I can't recall the levels that were found in the tissue.  It wasn't a significant part of the eco risk assessment at the time.  We were looking more at the sediment concentrations of contaminants in sediment.

MS. WALLIS:  Dr. Esposito?

DR. ESPOSITO:  Last week we had a presentation on the results of a study that was conducted by the University ‑‑ last month ‑‑ sorry.  Last month we had a presentation regarding a study that was conducted by University of California at Santa Barbara, the individuals at Davis, and individuals at the Bodega Bay Marine Biological Laboratory who examined mud‑suckers and crabs and worms and plants in Stege Marsh and found them to be ‑‑ the fishes suffering, in the case of males, from testicular somatization, that is, they were making egg proteins and they were sterile in the main, 35 percent of them, and females showing ovo‑testes, sterile, in a number of studies that have been done with these sentinel organisms.  Now I think it would be nice to roll those data into the studies of the marshes, east or west.

MS. COOK:  If I remember right, Sherry was going to take the initiative, and we agreed that we would try to do that.  She was going to try to bring those people back.  We are ‑‑ both the Cherokee as well as UC Richmond Field Staff are well aware of the study.  So once we pull the other group together we can figure it out from there. 

MS. PADGETT:  That is another follow‑up action item.  And it is the same one.  The follow‑up action item is to follow up on the invitation to Dr. Cherr, C‑h‑e‑r‑r, of Bodega Bay.  And the PEEIR team, P‑e‑e‑i‑r.  And that is mine, and it is ongoing.  There is ongoing communication.  And so we should have some kind of answer within the next week or so.

MS. WALLIS:  That will be shared e‑mail or at the next CAG meeting?

MS. PADGETT:  Via e‑mail.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  There were two indications of questions from the audience.  Shall I go to the audience now for those questions?  I saw one hand here and the other hand was here.  So please identify yourself for the transcript.  

MS. LICHTERMAN:  Hi.  I'm Joan Lichterman.  I am with University Professional and Technical Employees representing people at Richmond Field Station.  I had a question for Doug.  I didn't understand your response to Sherry on the first question about the depth of the groundwater testing.  That is one question.  And then I have another as well.

MR. MOSTELLER:  Okay.  I almost wish I had a white‑board.  

MS. LICHTERMAN:  Did you actually get the lower ‑‑ like that picture doesn't show that you went to the lower levels.

MS. WALLIS:  You are welcome to use this to draw on.

MR. MOSTELLER:  Sure.  So that picture, you are right, did not show that we did go to the lower level.  But if I could just ‑‑ I am a horrendous artist.  That's why I am an engineer, I guess.  This means groundwater, and so we collected ‑‑ this would represent effectively the upper horizon.  And the depth here I am just going to ‑‑ this is probably ‑‑ let's just say this is on Lot Three and this is around 10 feet.  And then this would be in the range of about 30 feet.  

And then we also collected samples within the lower horizon.  It was just not represented on that animation.  And the depth to this is in the range of about 40 to 45 feet below ground surface.

MS. LICHTERMAN:  Okay.  Thank you.  Then I have another question for you and one for DTSC and UC, I guess.  One of the slides, and I don't ‑‑ I can't remember if it was the VOCs in the groundwater or the pesticides.  It appeared that you had also tested ‑‑ there were some showing of yellow on the UC side past the slurry wall.  And I just wanted to clarify whether you had.  

MR. MOSTELLER:  I'm sorry.  I missed the question completely.

MS. LICHTERMAN:  One of the slides, and I don't remember if it was the VOCs or the metals, it appeared that you had ‑‑ that the yellow also went past ‑‑

MR. MOSTELLER:  That was the ‑‑

MS. LICHTERMAN:  ‑‑ to the UC side as well.  I just wanted to check whether you actually had tested that. 

MR. MOSTELLER:  That yellow area represented where cinders, as part of the history of the site, where they were prior to remedial activities that were completed by Zeneca.  So everywhere where there was yellow that is where cinders were excavated.  And those cinders at the time did extend onto the UC property, and then they were excavated and treated.

MS. LICHTERMAN:  Okay.  And then, Barbara and UC also, you talked about isolated areas of ash piles, and I wanted to know what "isolated areas" means and whether UC will be reporting on this as well.

MS. COOK:  I am going to defer that to the next presentation.  Are you going to cover that?

MS. WALLIS:  So we have another question from the audience.  

MR. SCHNEPF:  I'm Don Schnepf, S‑c‑h‑n‑e‑p‑f.  Just a question.  Do we really know which way the groundwater is flowing yet?  Has that been determined?

MS. COOK:  Groundwater typically flows from the property to the Bay.  

MR. SCHNEPF:  Is it going to flow in a straight line?

MS. COOK:  Yeah, generally.  Do you want to describe how your groundwater flows?  He is dangerous.  I would move very far. 

MR. MOSTELLER:  Groundwater generally flows from the north to ‑‑ towards the south, towards the Bay.  So it flows in this direction in general, but there are little areas were we can see some flow a little bit towards the UC property and then in this area also down towards the ‑‑ there we go.  Towards that direction.

MR. DOTSON:  On an extremely high tide would it go east towards the 580 or under 580 into some of the houses? 

MR. MOSTELLER:  We did a tidal study as part of our investigations, and really we only see tidal influences extending really only just about to this area.  It is very minimal tidal influence, and there is such a lag time between the high tide and then how that can impact up‑gradient.  When I say up‑gradient, that would be towards land.  There is a lag time there, so by the time you can start to see some impacts and the tide is actually gone back to low tide, in regard to the tide itself, so we do see some tidal influence, but is really just limited to this area.

MS. WALLIS:  We have about one more minute allocated to the question‑and‑answer period.  So any last question or comment in the last minute?

DR. RABOVSKY:  I think in the DTSC update I heard that Aquamaster was being used as a pesticide or insecticide.  My questions are what is it being used for, and what is the active ingredient of Aquamaster.

MS. WALLIS:  And your identity for the transcript?

DR. RABOVSKY:  Jean Rabovsky.  

MS. COOK:  As described in the bullet in the document, the active ingredient is Glyphosate.  Did I say that right?  Glyphosate, and it is being used to control the evasive non‑native plants in the coastal area.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  A final comment or question from Ms. Padgett? 

MS. PADGETT:  I would like to make just a general comment about the description of Lot 3.  And this is a clarification that has ‑‑ that needs to be repeated numerous times, I think, as we go forward.  Lot 3 of the Zeneca Cherokee property, by a legal description, includes the East Stege Marsh area, the lagoon ‑‑ fresh water lagoon area, otherwise known as the chemical evaporation ponds, as well as the southeast parcel.  

For purposes of ‑‑ for purposes of the Remedial Investigation report, the Current Conditions report, and other reports that we are going through, Lot 3 has been truncated to be only the upland portion of the property.  Lot 3 for all of these reports that we go through for analysis purposes, does not include the habitat enhancement area or Stege Marsh.  It does not include the chemical evaporation ponds that are now called fresh water lagoons, and it does not include the southeast parcel.  So there is a good portion of Lot 3 that is not included in the Lot 3 reports.   

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  This will conclude the question‑and‑answer section of the agenda.  The printed agendas you have do not reflect the additional item added during the agenda review.  And that is the five‑minute segment that was put on and agreed to by the CAG in inquiry to DTSC on the summary of violations.  And I believe that was Ms. Padgett's item.  So we have now five minutes for that item before the break is scheduled.  Ms. Padgett? 

MS. COOK:  You know my answer.  You know that I am the wrong person sitting at this table to answer this question.  

MS. PADGETT:  You know that we need to go through this exercise.  So background:  On June 30th, 2007, DTSC issued a summary of violations to University of California and to Zeneca for activities relating to the site between 2001 and 2003.  The summary of violations related to the movement of material and the storage of material on one site versus the other.  I am not going to go into all of the summary of violations, but they were pretty specific, and the fines ‑‑ the potential fines that relate to any one of those actions and all of those actions in total could be fairly significant. 

When the summary of violations was issued by DTSC, we were told that DTSC could not talk about it as investigations continued.  We were pretty patient about that.  That was in June 2007, July ‑‑ don't need to go through all of the months.  Here we are nine months later.  And my question is: what is the status of the summary of violations? 

MS. COOK:  The reason why I have made a comment that I am not the right person to speak about this is that the summary of violations issue was issued by our enforcement group, and as such I am not part of enforcement and, therefore, am not allowed to discuss it. 

But I can tell you what was also promised at that point in time is that when the report document prepared would be done it would be made public.  I can tell you that document has not been prepared and finalized.  So nothing has come out as a result of this yet.  

So I can just say that I will go back, I will inform them that this is an issue that has been raised by the CAG, and that I will ask them in some form or fashion to provide some type of update directly to the CAG. 

MS. PADGETT:  Thank you.  So we anticipated that that would be the answer.  And what I would like to propose to the CAG is that we form some sort of ad hoc committee, whether that be on line, get some volunteers to help out to write a letter to DTSC making a formal request about the status of the summary of violations and go on record as proposing that any related fines, if fines are to be assessed relating to these violations, that those fines be targeted for the work we are doing here on the site to help us with technical support in further investigation in the work that we are doing.  

And I would also like to propose that this ad hoc group consider requesting that the City of Richmond do the same sort of request, that any funds that come out of these violations be spent on this area in the form of either technical support for something else related to the Richmond Southeast Shoreline or specifically these two sites.  

The City of Richmond had a recent experience with other fines that were assessed on an area on the north shoreline that were not used in the Richmond area.  They were spent in another county.  And so I think that the City of Richmond is ‑‑ yes, Castro Cove fines relating to ‑‑ I think it was the dump. 

MAYOR MCLAUGHLIN:  Actually there are two different ones.  One is the Castro Cove contamination around that that was fined, and then what the DTSC related was with the Richmond Sanitary.

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.  The Richmond Sanitary fines were sent off to another county, and so we want to go on record if there are any fines related to the activities that occurred between 2001 and 2003, that those fines be used on an area related to Richmond, specifically where these actions happened.  So I am looking for, one, whether the CAG wants to form an ad hoc committee to move forward with this letter, and, two, to then ask the City of Richmond to follow suit.

MR. BRUNER:  Do you need a committee to write a letter?

MS. PADGETT:  I don't need a committee to write a letter.  I need a committee to review it.  And committees can be formed and take place on line.  I just need to know who needs to be involved.

MS. GRAVES:  Do we just want a show of hands as to who is interested? 

MS. PADGETT:  I guess I am making a motion.

MS. GRAVES:  Motion for a committee to be formed to write a letter to DTSC asking about the status of the action.  Is there a second?

DR. ESPOSITO:  I second it.

MS. GRAVES:  All in favor?  Any opposed?  None opposed, so motion passes. 

MS. PADGETT:  I need volunteers.  I see Deborah, Carolyn, Joe.  And that is good.

MS. WALLIS:  Ms. Padgett, would you like this recorded as an action item?

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.  It will be done within two weeks.  

MS. WALLIS:  Could you describe what will be done, the composition of a letter?

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.  A draft letter for the CAG to review will be finished within two weeks for our CAG chair to sign.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  So we have now reached the time for the ten‑minute break.  Please plan to come back at about eight minutes before 8:00.  Thank you.

(Recess.)

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you for taking your seats.  We are going to resume with the meeting agenda.  Before we do that I have been asked by the CAG secretary just to let you know that additional copies, if you are interested in getting copies of the several handouts that related to the PEEIR study that was talked about at length at the last CAG meeting, just let Carolyn Graves, the CAG secretary, know and she can help you get additional copies of these.  

The next item on our agenda is the UC RFS presentation on the marsh area.  And I am going to ask Mr. Carl Hans to introduce ‑‑ or his representative to introduce who will be speaking on that.  Thank you.  

MR. HAET:  Thank you.  My name is Greg Haet, H‑a‑e‑t, with U.C. Berkeley.  And thanks for inviting us here tonight to talk about our Stege Marsh restoration program.  And to give you the presentation I would like to invite up here Jason Brodersen, our consultant with Tetratech.  

MR. BRODERSEN:  Thank you very much.  I do have cards to keep me on time.  At the last CAG meeting it was suggested that UC Berkeley provide an update.  It was brought up there were some questions about worker safety in the marsh.  And the sampling happened, and the idea was we were going to put together a summary of what current sampling we are doing.  

Also, just for folks who maybe weren't involved earlier, a quick summary of the background and the daily evaluation and conclusions.  While the last presentation was going on I added a quick figure at the back of this which will help answer the question about the ash piles we found.  So we can handle that too.  

Okay.  So just for quick ‑‑ just to get our bearings here, what we are talking about is the western Stege Marsh, which is this spot here.  This photograph was taken before the remediation.  Here is the Richmond Field Station.  Meeker Slough comes through a concrete channel here and along Marina Bay.  Campus Bay we discussed earlier, and eastern Stege Marsh.  

I am going to put up here this blue line that represents the former Bay line.  And this is all fill material.

MR. DOTSON:  As of when?

MR. BRODERSEN:  Predevelopment. 

MS. PADGETT:  '30s, '40s, '50s '60s.

MR. BRODERSEN:  Okay.  This shows the marsh before the cleanup, and I think it is easy to see here that there are some serious issues going on.  This is the original pond.  It almost ‑‑ I don't know what this is, but it's all pretty nasty looking.  Just looking down on it these are waste piles or source areas that came from a mercury fulminate plant, the Zeneca cinder landfill, and also a PCB area here.  And there is a cleanup proposed to clean up those areas. 

MS. PADGETT:  Before you leave this one, could you point out the bulb for everyone? 

MR. BRODERSEN:  This is kind of the white area.  When we talk about the western ‑‑ when we talk about the transition area versus the marsh, we are going to define the marsh in this discussion as tidal influence area plus five feet.  And I have a figure that shows that.  When you look at this, generally the white area is a transition area, and then the brown area is a marsh area, generally.  Here is another photo prior to the remediation.  So in addition to removing source toxic sources on the ‑‑

MR. DOTSON:  Excuse me.  Could you go back to the photo prior to remediation?

MR. BRODERSEN:  It's just a landscape shot that looks like it is facing west, southwest.  So I think it is important to note that on the western portion of the marsh was an existing Clapper Rail habitat, so as a part of the restoration or goal, it is very important that we establish the other portion, the eastern portion of the western Stege Marsh as a Clapper Rail habitat.  

Clapper Rail is a federally‑listed endangered species.  There are only about a thousand left in California.  It is illegal to disturb the Clapper Rail.  There is a very specific breeding period where we cannot go into the Clapper Rail habitat.  Because of that all marsh activities are monitored by the Berkeley Health and Environmental Safety and Facilities proper.  So this is a post‑removal action aerial that just gives a general idea of what happened out there.  

You saw the last photograph which shows some pretty gross stuff around here.  Basically we did a massive soil excavation in two phases, the two phases that affected the marsh in green and in blue, what I just mentioned previously about the marshes.  We define marsh as red.  So when we talk about the marsh area that removed the contamination, it is basically this.  Soil and sediment was removed from that area I just outlined, and basically also in sediment brought down to clean Bay muds. 

MR. ROBINSON:  None of that was Clapper Rail habitat, correct? 

MR. BRODERSEN:  No, unless there are Clappers sitting on the orange stuff.  So we imported clean Bay mud from Martinez, and that stuff was basically pushed into those excavations that you just noted.  

So the marsh was brought to grade with an excavator, and then we dug channels, and you see the beginning of this.  Channels were dug into the new Bay mud and following channels we revegetated the area and ongoing restoration activities, which are still ongoing.  

The next slide shows the progress of the next couple of years.  This is 2004, so about a year afterwards, and these next slides in 2005 and 2006.  Okay.  Well, as a part of the restoration activities, you know, there is a lot going on out there.  What came up at the last CAG meeting, there are people who are working along the transition area and within the marsh itself.  

We do restrict access to the marsh to everyone except those people who are either ‑‑ who are trained and who let us know what is going on.  We have a full‑time staff from my company who is also at the Field Station during business hours.  And anyone who happens into the marsh area is asked what they are doing there.  

So the different types of staff who can enter the marsh are at Tetra, my company, subcontractors and graduate and undergraduate researchers.  Everyone is forced to go through training, everyone is made aware of the possible contaminants and chemicals at present at the marsh, and everyone is required to wear protective clothing.

MR. DOTSON:  This is after the restoration?

MR. BRODERSEN:  That is correct.  After the restoration.  I don't know if people were there before the restoration.  Some of the activities that happen there are weeding and planting, which is pretty continual.  We monitor vegetation on a biannual level, we monitor sediment surface on a biannual level, and there are some miscellaneous research activities that happen in the marsh, and those folks go through the same training that we do.  

Kind of to give you just a quick idea of where we do some of the restoration activities, we identify these plots, and these plots are monitoring ‑‑ we care for invasives and where possible we pull the invasives by hand and replant through.  There is a nursery up here, a shade‑house where we cultivate native species and plant them.  And this is kind of what it looks like right now.  

So this area is about what we would call ‑‑ the five‑foot?  Yeah.  I think the fence‑line is the marsh.  This is what we call a transition area.  So specifically what do we do in terms of sampling?  As I mentioned before, we do twice a year sediment, we do twice a year surface water, we do twice a year storm sampling.  Generally these are geared towards spring and fall.  

In addition, ever since the beginning, starting in May, we have been doing sampling that has been geared towards worker protection.  This is sampling in the marsh that is very specific to the near surface sediments.  We try to target between zero and three inches.  That is the most common area where someone would be working in the marsh in terms of doing restoration and would be exposed to plants.  In addition, and I wasn't planning on talking about it but it's relevant, I will bring up the slide at the end ‑‑ we have also been doing sampling in the transition area to further ensure worker safety.  I should clarify that all of this activity is handled by my company, Tetratech.  And everyone is fully trained within OSHA protocols.  

This is an example of where we are sampling to protect people like Stacy who is out there for Tetratech for the marsh restoration work she does.  This green line is the boundary of the marsh where all of the toxics were removed.  And these blue spots, this would just be one event that we did in January, and these blue spots are where sample increments are collected from.  So there is pretty good coverage.  So I have two slides here.  I think I am doing well for time.  I have two slides that show the results from all six events that I mentioned previously, so that we have done three biannuals and we have done three of these worker protection‑type sampling events.  

And in the blue is arsenic.  I just picked arsenic, mercury and PCB as indicator species.  The arsenics you start ‑‑ time starting in the left March '05 to January '08.  Arsenic in the blue, the highest level was 55.  These are arithmetic means of all the samples collected during that period.  For a non‑detect, for example, it doesn't really happen with metals, but we use half the detection limit.  

What you are seeing here are arithmetic means or averages of all of the samples collected in the event. 

MS. PADGETT:  At three inches? 

MR. BRODERSEN:  I kind of mixed the three data sets here.  So the March '05 is zero to three inches.  June '06 is also zero to three.  October '06 is zero to six inches.  May '06 ‑‑ this is zero to six inches, this is zero to six inches, and this is zero to three inches.  I had had it on earlier.  It looked busy so I took it off. 

MR. DOTSON:  The testing is done at the same site?

MR. BRODERSEN:  At different locations throughout the marsh.  So this blue level right here, arsenic first, this blue level is what the ambient sediment criteria is for arsenic in the Bay.  So it is 15.4.  So it ranged from as high as the first event ‑‑ this is the average.  There was one sample that was 500.  If you take that out the average is closer to 24.  There appears to be a downward trend.  Our current levels are below the 15.  

In terms of mercury, this is the commercial industrial level for mercury.  And the burgundy spots are all of the average hits that we have had for mercury.  So we are very below the industrial exposure.  So this is total PCBs from those same events, and one is the TOSCA cleanup level for residential, and these are our results ranging from as high as it is, 4.4 down to the most current levels that are below .2.  

MR. MAYES:  Milligrams per kilogram, is that a parts per million? 

MR. BRODERSEN:  Yes.  I kind of just throw the slide up here because during the Department of Public Health public health evaluation they used all of the data that I mentioned there except the January data.  And basically it is a third‑party public agency that came up with very similar conclusions that we did, which is it appears that it is very safe for current and future workers.  

Their comments or conclusions were that anyone participating in restoration activities would not result in adverse health effects.  They did recommend continued biannual sampling of the marsh and groundwater.  Yes, sir? 

MR. THOMPSON:  What about the accumulated effect that that person is exposed to?  You don't have to be exposed to a whole lot.  It can be a very minute amount, and the person's body stores it up.

MR. BRODERSEN:  Well, there is cumulative and there is acute risk.  And the ‑‑ those cleanup levels that showed assumed that ‑‑ the commercial industrial exposure is 250 days per year for eight hours per day for ‑‑ I don't know how many years, twenty‑five years.  So that assumes that they are getting exposed to those levels all the time.  Our people out there aren't getting exposed to anything near that type of exposure duration.  So it does account for cumulative.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Instead of going through the argument about what should happen or what might happen ‑‑ my name is Michael Esposito ‑‑ it seems to me that the simple thing to do is to have your employees volunteering to donate some blood and some saliva and have a biomonitoring program, and you can watch the accumulation of these toxics.  

MR. BRODERSEN:  All my employees are in the health monitoring program.  They get their blood tested every year. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  For the content of these contaminants, these PCB? 

MR. BRODERSEN:  They get tested for heavy metals.  I don't know about PCBs.  They are in the standard OSHA 40‑hour ‑‑ we have a medical surveillance program.

DR. ESPOSITO:  The reason I asked is that we have the California Environmental Contaminant Monitoring Program has just started.  And they are moving in this direction.  It is a welcome change.  Rather than doing complex math to come up with risk to humans you can actually take samples.  

MR. BRODERSEN:  Next slide.  I went through and said, okay, everything looks like it is fine.  At some level, though, looks like we cleaned up that area, so why are we seeing levels of PCB and arsenic and mercury?  I think it is important, any time you have new chemicals coming in, you have to look at the possible pathways and you have to look at what the possible sources are.  In terms of pathways and sediment, you can have over‑land flow, you can have sediment that is interacting with Meeker Slough, you can have some rain events, you could have any overflow, you can have interaction with Bay tides, and, in fact, given the amount of time we are talking about, from 2004 to 2008, and since the primary mechanism for sediment transport in near‑surface sediments is tidal interaction, what we would speculate is chances are this stuff is ‑‑ what we are seeing is from redeposition from interaction with San Francisco Bay.  

And in terms of possible sources, there are a lot of studies out there right now that show mercury and PCBs, for example, in the Bay in various levels everywhere.  So I just throw this up there.  These are PCB concentrations that are modeled throughout the Bay.  The Bay mud that we bought in from Martinez is up in the blue.  I will point out where we are.  I'm sorry.  It is not a very intuitive map.  This is where we brought in the mud from, and we are located right here.  Right there.  

So, I mean, we could speculate that the PCBs, for example, are probably from the reaction with the Bay muds.  That is just a speculation.  There is many possible sources.  I hope this is our question‑and‑answer period at the same time.  

MS. GRAVES:  I guess it is.  I would be a little bit more convinced of that if you had a similar map of this showing hot spots and such of your marsh area rather than just giving us averages where we don't know where the samples were and whether the results are being diluted by samples in areas where we expect it to be clear.

MR. BRODERSEN:  I don't disagree with you.  I think that when we do the biannual samples those are specific discrete samples where we can see the results.  For the first couple of worker protection samples, the same thing.  We can see them specifically.

As we move now towards worker protection as opposed to trying to map concentrations, it is actually much more important to understand what the overall exposure would be than to wonder whether or not there are concentrations that are different, because they are spending the same amount of time everywhere in the marsh, if that answers the question. 

MS. PADGETT:  Can we ask where we were on time?  I have a whole series of comments. 

MR. BRODERSEN:  That was my last line.  I am right at the conclusion.  We can get close to me just finishing this and then we can do the Q and A.  So most of what we are doing out there right now in talking about being in the marsh and being exposed, it is all about improving the ecological habitat.  Everything that we are doing is about that in addition to some of the water monitoring and storm water that we need to do for the permit.  

From everything we have seen, our conclusion is it is very safe for current and future workers being exposed to soils or sediment in the marsh.  Those levels clearly showed that.  Everyone who is out there is trained.  I suppose there is a chance somebody could run from the path and jump in there, but our plan is not to let that happen.  There is signage up.  We have people watching for that.  It is a controlled access area.  And we'll continue to monitor it.  And we'll continue to monitor both biannually and we will continue to monitor as we need to if we think things change to protect our workers.  These are my employees we are talking about here.  I am very concerned about making sure we know what they are being exposed to.  

The map I have that helps explain the cinder thing, do I do that before or after, the waste pile, before or after?  Okay.  Next.  Just so everyone knows, you know, as a reminder, we have a Website with all of the documents.  Okay.  So this is ‑‑ I will use my right hand this time.  We were very interested because of weed abatement activities where we knew there would be potentially staff being exposed to when they are digging out weeds in the transition area.  So what you see in green here is the transition area where we have been proposing to do some weed abatement activities.  

We did a site walk, first of all, to try to figure out where the boundaries would be.  And when we did that site walk, we noted two locations here which are in red as being different.  You could tell they were different from every other area because it looked like there was some burned material.  It looked like ash.  So we identified those.  We are going to sample those differently.  And we are not going to let anyone around them until we know what is going on.  

So then we proceeded to do sampling, and in each of these green plots are 50 locations that our workers went back and forth on a grid and collected soil samples.  And the idea was ‑‑ 

MS. PADGETT:  At what depth?  

MR. BRODERSEN:  Zero to six inches.  And the idea was if they were to see anything that at all resembled something that we saw here they would stop and sample that as well.  And they didn't.  We have the results you saw in terms of elevated areas are these two locations.  We aren't doing any weed abatement activities right now, and we are not going to that until those are gone.  The levels for these sampling locations were all below what concerns us in terms of exposure. 

MR. ROBINSON:  What was the distance of the lines?  

MR. BRODERSEN:  Well, one inch to whatever this bar is to 60 feet.  It is probably about 180 feet across.  

MR. ROBINSON:  And the distance between those lines was...

MR. BRODERSEN:  In reality when they do this in the field they do it more orthogonal.  These dots are just supposed to represent there is 50.  They do it orthogonal.  It is huge sample coverage, that many samples.  

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  I would like to do a quick time‑check with the group.  We have used up the time for both the presentation and the Q and A.  I know the presenter was answering questions as he presented, so I did see also additional hands indicating interests from the CAG in posing additional questions and comments.  So what is the suggestion of the chair or anyone in the group for either extending this conversation or moving along?

MR. ROBINSON:  Do we have an idea of how many questions there are? 

MS. WALLIS:  I saw Mr. Linsley's hand, Mr. Alcarez' hand, and Ms. Padgett's. 

MR. ROBINSON:  I would like to present a motion to go over ten minutes tonight.  Do we have a second on that?

MS. GRAVES:  Second.  

So motion to extend our CAG meeting by ten minutes.  And that has been seconded.  All in favor?  Any opposed?  Motion passes.

MS. WALLIS:  So we'll continue with questions and comments for an additional ten minutes and, if needed, and first I will call on Mr. Linsley.  

MR. LINSLEY:  This is just a comment on the PCBs.  I don't think that your theory that the PCBs in the marsh are coming from the Bay mud around the Bay very extensively because the scale for the mud PCBs in the Bay was, like, a factor of 100,000 less than the concentration in the marsh.  I would think that the contamination would go the other way then.  If you have a factor of 100,000, that the marsh is contaminating the Bay rather than the Bay contaminating the marsh.  That is all.  

MR. ALCAREZ:  I just wanted to know about the depth in which you went to clean this.  Did you take it down to actual ground level where it was hard pack, or did you just take it down 70 feet and clean it?  Also when you brought it back up did you bring it up to ground level or sea level?

MR. BRODERSEN:  The excavation which is this photo ‑‑ Carl, what did they use to define the bottom?  It is clearly below groundwater, historic Bay mud.  When they sampled it it was clean. 

MR. ALCAREZ:  Okay.  After you did that remediation, did you ‑‑ are you taking your tests of the soil or the backfill that you brought in, or are you taking deeper samples?  

MR. BRODERSEN:  If you look at this photograph, this is them grading the Bay muds which were brought clean from Martinez.  I don't know that they were sampling iteratively.

MR. ALCAREZ:  Okay.  We got that.  If it is from Martinez that is also exposed to Exxon, Shell, Avon, Braxair, the generation plant ‑‑ I don't need to go any further.  I just wanted to know if everything was cool with that because we don't want people getting hurt out there.

MR. HAET:  I think if it was the question was the Bay mud sampled, yes.  

MR. BRODERSEN:  It was sampled prior to it being ‑‑

MR. DOTSON:  I think he was asking the question was it sampled after the soil was put in. 

MR. BRODERSEN:  So if you look at ‑‑ Greg, go to the next.  I don't think they sampled it yet.  What you see in this channel, that is, a channel that was purposely excavated to begin to duplicate the original marsh or to come up with a suitable marsh.  Flip through the next ones.  So we began to sample the surface.  I mean, the idea would be that we are sampling right now.  We are sampling for worker protection.  I think it's important to note that that is the goal, worker protection.  So we are most concerned about if people are in sediment, what are they getting exposed to.  And where they are getting exposed most is zero to three inches.  So that's where we are targeting in terms of that. 

MR. ALCAREZ:  Are the people working out there, are they exposed to whatever is leaching through or ‑‑

MR. BRODERSEN:  Leaching through?  They are exposed to what they are being exposed to.  They are exposed to whatever is on the surface. 

MS. PADGETT:  First I would like to thank you, Greg, Carl and Jason, for coming to the CAG meeting.  We are very appreciative of you coming and giving us some explanations.  With some due respect, I do disagree with some of the angles that have been taken here this evening with regard to the approach.  If we could go to a slide that shows the marsh overall, I think it would be helpful. 

MR. BRODERSEN:  An aerial photo?  

MS. PADGETT:  Right back there.  That one is pretty good.  This one makes the point of the green areas, area one, two, and three, and then the blue areas, area two, four, M3 and then area 1A.  All of those areas were dug out at some point.  And you see a significant area still unremediated.  And what this aerial photo doesn't show is that all of that area that is surrounded in red lines fills with high tide, so the water moves with strong tidal action, moves in from the Bay, fills that entire red‑lined area with water, and then moves out with strong tidal action.  So the areas that are not surrounded by either red or blue are still heavily contaminated.

MR. HAET:  May I put up another slide, Sherry, that might be more instructive?  Jason, maybe you can speak to this.  If you look at the impacted area, this was in 1999, the area to the right, Jason, where it is bare.  There is a reason why there is nothing growing there.

MS. PADGETT:  That is true.  And ‑‑

MR. HAET:  This is how it looked before we started.  There is a reason why we targeted those areas.  That is where the sources were affecting the marsh.  And you can see it very clearly here in this photo. 

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.  Those were the areas that were targeted first, and there are other areas that also have hazardous materials in them to the west, where the words "marsh" are.  Those areas have not been ‑‑ that area has not been remediated yet, so there is still high levels of contaminants out there in the area under the words "marsh."  

And so in high tide, the water is moving over the word "marsh" into and over the clean fill now and picking up, possibly, contaminants from the area that is unremediated as well as you see the words "former mercury fulminate plant," that area has not been remediated either.  So the surface water that moves across the top of that area also flows down into and over the clean Bay mud that was brought in to cover the area that was remediated.  And the area that is ‑‑ that you are calling the ash areas which are over to ‑‑ just under it says "PCB area."  It just seems a little coincidental that we have a known hotspot, a known PCB area hotspot, that is literally right under those letters "PCB area".  And then just to the right of it we have now found two ash areas that also have PCBs of very high levels.  

So I am ‑‑ this idea that the tide brought it in just seems a little like we have gone aways here to reach for other reasons for contamination.  The contamination is pretty high all in one small area.

MR. HAET:  That PCB area was removed. 

MS. PADGETT:  The PCB area was removed to a certain depth, but the PCBs are still down under the fill that was brought in.  So the PCBs are still ‑‑ when you say the PCBs were removed, yes, they were removed down to a depth that says "area M1A" that was removed down to a certain depth, but there are PCBs under that fill that are still in existence out there. 

MR. BRODERSEN:  I agree with you.  I think that, first of all, the two ash piles that are over here, they are not in the tidal zone, and it looks like there were people out there partying and did some burning.  It doesn't look like a PCB hotspot.  It looks like a little barbecue pit.  We want to get rid of it.  Whether or not that is the source of the PCBs, I don't know, but we definitely want to get rid of that.  My understanding is in the areas that were not excavated, is that there have been discussions, and there is going to continue to be discussions with the stakeholders and agencies about what is the best way to deal with the western portion of western Stege marsh. 

I mean, I think that is still ‑‑ we have a scoping meeting scheduled, and it is not ‑‑ I am not here to say that we are not doing anything there.

MS. PADGETT:  Right.  I wasn't suggesting that you are here saying you are not doing anything.  It's just the impression that you are leaving ‑‑ and I heard you say on at least two occasions that being in west Stege Marsh is very safe.  And I ‑‑ I have to take exception to that description.  It isn't very safe. 

MR. BRODERSEN:  I am not an industrial hygienist, but my industrial hygienist, that is all he does for a living.  He's looked at the levels, and his professional opinion was for the exposures that my staff are doing, it is safe.  I don't know if you would use the word "very."  I think it is or isn't.  So the conclusion that we came to in terms of protecting our workers is they are safe.  And I suppose somebody could dispute that.  Our NRCH says it is safe.  And we still take precautions in terms of making sure people aren't eating or drinking or smoking out there or touching the stuff with their hands. 

MS. PADGETT:  I understand your position.  When DTSC issues a time‑critical removal action to remove PCBs that are at 88 parts per million and the limit is one, I think that is a red flag, and the site is not very safe.

MS. WALLIS:  I see an additional hand, and I just want to check in with the group.  We have used the additional ten minutes that was allocated for this.

MR. MAYES:  30 seconds.

MS. WALLIS:  So at the pleasure of the chair.

MR. MAYES:  Jason, where is the delineation of the sample set with all of the blue dots on the grid compared to this image?  Use the pointer. 

MR. BRODERSEN:  Just for clarification, nobody is working out here.  So when I say it is safe I am not talking about the 80.  Nobody is working out there.  The only place that people are working is right here, and that is the delineation.  It is this red line here down to here and then follows the blue and green. 

MR. MAYES:  It is only the remediated ‑‑

MR. BRODERSEN:  The portion that we are restoring, everything is about restoring.

MS. WALLIS:  All right.  We'll conclude that section of the agenda and move on to the Toxics Committee report.  Dr. Esposito? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  While the electronics are being put together, I would like to tell you what we have on the program this evening.  The Toxics Committee summary report is going to consist of three elements.  We are going to continue our discussion of all things, PCBs, and as well we are going to have a report from Sherry Padgett regarding a recent meeting on the subject of Brownfield restoration, and then we will discuss the issue of Checkmate spraying in Richmond.  

The latter topic has drawn a lot of attention from the CAG.  We feel a certain amount of solidarity with the entire City of Richmond.  This is not an issue that relates to the responsible parties who are attempting to remediate these sites.  This is a community issue, and consequently many of us have been told that they want to bring it up, especially members of the CAG and members of the City.  

So I would like to begin by saying a little bit about the issue of PCB contamination.  Before I begin, let me introduce the subject in the following way.  It is very interesting, if you look at the history of toxicology and environmental restoration, that it is the small community groups who first noticed increased disease in their communities that alert the general public to the possibility that some agents are the cause of disease.  There are many examples of this including coal dust and lung cancer, asbestos and mesothelioma, various PCBs, and others.  

Unfortunately, the statisticians look at small communities with their spikes of ill health and say, "That is very difficult to prove."  But history has demonstrated that, by and large, when a community looks into its environments and sees increased illness, it turns out to have a solid basis.  

How does this relate to PCBs?  We have just been told, in fact, by mail, by DTSC that the remediation investigation for Lots One and Two has been completed.  There is a concern about PCBs, and we have heard other concerns about PCBs this evening.  

So I would like to take us back along the lines of the ancient history of PCB contamination and talk about what I think is a Richmond sister city as far as that is concerned, and that is Anniston, Alabama.  This is the home of Monsanto Corporation.  PCB pollution in Anniston was a problem that became noticed by members of the community.  It is the hometown of Monsanto production of PCBs.  It is a company town.  It is a blue‑collar town ‑‑ it was then, 70 percent white or rural poor, 30 percent black rural poor, and a lot of people working at the company store.

May I have the next slide?  It is located in Appalachia.  It is in the foothills of Calhoun County, up in the corner there.  And its history is that it was a company town and it was founded in 1872 by some industrialists and finally received the name of Anniston much later in its history.  

How did the PCBs come to Anniston?  Basically PCBs are terrific electrical insulators, and they were being introduced into a number of apparatus that we all know about, refrigerators transformers, et cetera.  Now PCBs are a complete concoction of the organic chemist.  They don't occur in nature.  They are something our bodies have never seen and a great deal of material was produced in Anniston until 1971 and when it was stopped.  And it took a while for PCB to be recognized as a possible carcinogen.  

Now, if you remember, last week we noted that in Stege Marsh the Pacific Estuarine Ecology Investigation unit discovered that one of their sentinel organisms, a vertebrate, the Mud‑sucker, a fish, carried tumors and had sexual anomalies.  

They regarded this sentinel organism as quite important because, like us, it is a vertebrate, and thought that PCBs might function as endocrine disruptors.  If you look at your handout sheet, you have a picture of a PCB molecule.  There will be one up here soon.  And they have a mixture ‑‑ usually the commercial materials, a mixture of ‑‑ can be 209 different compounds.  They have no odor.  Some of them are volatile.  They are all related to one another, which I am going to show you in a moment.  They are cogeners, which means close relations.  And some are colorless.  Others are, like, yellow.  And they can be quite volatile.  

This is a typical PCB molecule.  I want to point out to you that this molecular ‑‑ this molecule, this PCB is a very, very important molecular mimic of chemicals that occur naturally in our bodies.  Those two six‑sided rings, there are a pair of benzene molecules.  And the numbers indicate the positions where chlorines can be attached.  They have compositions.  The part about this molecule which makes it a molecular mimic is when you have two benzene rings near one another like that with things like chlorine attached to it, they resemble other compounds which are normal in our body.  

It resembles thyroxin.  It resembles estradiol.  It resembles testosterone.  And in point of fact, if you were to ‑‑ if you see the dash in the middle, which is a bond between those two benzene rings, if you put an oxygen between them, you will have the skeletal structure for thyroxin.  We would have to add a few more atoms around the ring.  But if you put bromine on that ring, then you have the compound which was used as a fire retardant in children's clothing, and it is an endocrine disruptor as well.  It is called a biphenyl compound of ether which has bromines attached to it.  

So these are dangerous molecules that we are tossing into the environment.  And all of us now have some PCBs as a body burden, some less than others, hopefully, but we all have some.  We know now that PCBs are carcinogens in animals, and there is very strong data indicating that it is a probable carcinogen in humans.  

The PCBs undergo change in the environment.  The ones that are accumulated in our livers and our fat tissue are the ones that are most dangerous.  They are carcinogenic as well as being disruptors.  And, of course, the single species we talked about last time were those fishes in the west Stege Marsh.  They have immune effects.  They upset our immune system.  They corrupt the intercellular signaling that goes on in the immune system because they bind to receptors and they fool cells that should be acting properly.  

They have reproductive effects.  People who were exposed to PCP in factories have decreased birth weights.  They have significant decrease in gestational age at birth.  It is very important that young women who are potentially pregnant should not be working around PCBs.  They have neurological effects as well in children who have been born to mothers who have significant body burdens, there are difficulties in learning, in the visual field, short‑term memory.  And the non‑cancer effects are, of course, the endocrine effects, and in humans there are also reported cases of sexual maldevelopment, males who are producing proteins that should be only produced by females and females producing proteins that only should be produced by males and abnormal ovaries and testes, just like the fishes.  

They also affect thyroid hormone levels, and, if you remember, at the Harbor Front Tract we have a small spike in individuals who exhibited a thyroid ‑‑ various forms of thyroid disease, what they call female reproductive problems, as well as carcinomas.  

Next slide.  The public at the time had no idea of whether or not PCBs posed a danger.  Monsanto knew that fishes came up to the surface every time they dumped PCB into the creeks.  Some of the residents have filed a suit.  They claimed that the company was trying to hide the information.  

What brought the attention of the public to the possible role of PCBs in cancer?  Was it the people getting ill?  No.  It was the sports fishermen who observed that their favorite fishes now had tumors that they didn't have before.  And that made people quite upset.  

Now, finally, soil exploration revealed there were PCB levels of the soil never reported, and pediatricians at the local clinics reported babies with very unusual birth defects.  In fact, one physician at the time in 2003 said, "We lead the state in birth defects."  

How much were they exposed?  Well, it's very easy now to measure the PCB burden of individuals.  The usual level in an adult is about two parts per billion.  That is quite different than what was found in children and adults from the Anniston area where the parts per billion could go as high as 210.  So if you want to know whether or not individuals working in areas contaminated by PCBs are accumulating PCBs as a body burden, there are tests to do this.  

Next slide.  And as in the case of the Harbor Front Tract and Seaport Village and stories told by workers at the University of California Richmond Field Station, disease spikes were noted, cancers and premature deaths.  

Next slide.  Eventually barrels of buried PCBs were found in dumps around the area.  Monsanto was found liable.  Next slide.  But the monetary awards were very slim.  And the one local lady summed it up by saying, "They did a job on this city.  They thought we were stupid and illiterate people so that nobody would notice what happened to us."  Well, Monsanto was the legacy that can't be ignored, and no one would say that we are talking about PCB levels at the levels of Anniston, Alabama.  But the important thing is that it is not a trivial problem.  It is very dangerous.  And it certainly is worthwhile to get rid of every bit of it that we can.  

Questions?  Well, then, I would like to move on to the report by Sherry Padgett regarding Brownfield remediation. 

MS. PADGETT:  I am going to make this pretty quick.  I attended a California Department of Public Health Environmental Health Investigative Branch roundtable forum in San Diego last week.  And Barbara Cook was there.  It was terrific to have her there.  The local environmental health investigative branch staff was there along with representatives from the public, and Joan Lichterman was there from UC.  And we were glad to have her there.  

I think I can sum it up by saying we focused on Brownfield development and its emphasis ‑‑ its ‑‑ the emphasis that the redevelopment agencies put on finding these Brownfields and their motivation in moving them forward through the cleanup process, we have suspected all along, and it was confirmed for us with our local City of Richmond representative from the Richmond Redevelopment Agency, Gary Hambry.  He was there and spoke at length and did a terrific job.  But he explained that there are forces at work that may not be apparent to all of us on the surface.  

As Richmond ‑‑ as redevelopment agencies are out trying to find these sites, bring them forward for remediation, and they have different motivations for moving their funding forward that may be very different than the public may ‑‑ maybe they are different from the public's priorities.  So it was a terrific discussion.  We were there for two‑thirds of a day.  And I thought it went quite well.  

We came up with some ‑‑ and Whitney was there too.  Sorry, Whitney.  So Whitney attended, and maybe you would like to add something to it that the priorities were ‑‑ we discussed the Brownfield remediation.  The priorities may be different for the public versus the redevelopment agencies.  We didn't have a final resolution.  We did have some break‑out sessions to figure out what we could do about those differences, but we didn't come to any concrete solutions.

MR. DOTSON:  Go ahead. 

MS. PADGETT:  Joan, did you want to add anything to that?

MS. LICHTERMAN:  I do want to ask, when you asked for questions, was that public comment?  

MS. PADGETT:  I'm finished. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I will take questions.  Yes, yes.

MS. LICHTERMAN:  Okay.  So I have a question for UC.  If you monitor vegetation, have you found what the PEEIR people found where they were looking at plants and little deposits of mercury in things that they tested?  And how did you respond when they made a presentation?  DTSC had said that they had made presentations to UC and to DTSC two years ago. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Let me interrupt you for a moment.  I misunderstood you, Joan.  We are not in the public comment.  We are still in the Toxics Committee.  But I will we'll get to your question.  I think that maybe the last item we want to discuss in the Toxics Committee is the other questions about your presentation.  Okay.  Then maybe we could move on to the issue of Checkmate.  First of all, I would like to thank everybody who helped research this issue.  And I would like to congratulate the Mayor for taking a leadership role for all of us in the community.  

We have a burden throughout Richmond not just to RSSA, as I mentioned, but a century of pollution.  And we really don't need any more.  I am particularly interested because there are so many asthmatic children in this area, if anyone has any comment about inhaling particles.  

Yes, Jean Rabovsky. 

DR. RABOVSKY:  A couple of ‑‑ one of the concerns is the inhalation pathway for Checkmate.  Apparently what I have been able to determine, and I will say on the outset, finding information, particularly from any kind of primary source, is next to impossible in this issue.  So far I have only been able to find bits and pieces of statements and comments that are not really very well referenced.  

So what I have are really a lot of questions.  My major concern is the inhalation of the microcapsules.  Apparently this formulation of Checkmate, the pheromone and the inert ingredients, everything else is in the form of a microcapsule.  Now if the microcapsules are less than 10 microns, they can enter the deep lung.  There they can exert toxicity in the gas exchange area.  They can cross over the membranes and get into the blood system and therefore be transported to other organs.  

Now larger particles than 10 microns, I have seen the number 25 a few times.  I have seen ranges of 25 to 10.  I really do not know what the particle size distribution is.  But even the larger particles can lodge in your throat, in your nose, on your eyes.  And they can ‑‑ particles, and I am talking about particles as particle, regardless of their chemistry, can then be an irritant to the nose and throat area.  

Now if you already have a predisposition to a pulmonary problem at any part of your lung system and you are going to add some more particles to it, I would be very, very, very concerned.  What we need is information about what is out there.  

Also, when particles enter the lung, regardless of their size, whether they are lodged in the upper respiratory tract or they go into the deep lung, some particles, depending on the chemistry or their structures may be unstable.  They may be broken down.  They may leach.  So one considers a small organic molecule that is within the particle could leach out, depending on the biological fluid, depending on a lot of conditions.  One cannot sit here and determine what that will be.  But it is a question.  

And I don't ‑‑ from what I have been able to see, basically through Internet searches, I have not been able to see answers to those questions.  Another thing about particles that can be lodged even in the upper respiratory tract, we all know when we are in a dusty area we often have to cough.  It's a mechanism that the body has to clear it out.  Very often when you cough up you get entrance into the gastrointestinal tract in that way.  It is another way to be exposed.  And I would really be very concerned. 

I think these questions need to be answered.  So far I do not see that they are answered at all in what I have been able to determine.  If someone has the answers to these questions I would love to hear it. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Thank you.  I think that concludes the Toxics Committee for this evening.  Thank you. 

MS. WALLIS:  Ms. McLaughlin? 

MAYOR MCLAUGHLIN:  I just want to thank all of the individuals who did research for this Checkmate issue.  I mean, I think it is ‑‑ I really appreciate the research and information brought forward.  And my office is going to be continuing to really dive deep, and please, any further information that anyone has would be greatly appreciated.  

I also want to thank you, Michael Esposito, for your presentation on PowerPoint for PCBs.  I thought that was really, really informative.  I think the Tox Com has really done an incredible job both last month with the presentation on the study that indicated the animals and the effect on the fish and ‑‑ et cetera, just really speaking to the public at large, you know, to really ‑‑ the targeting of information that is needed rather than going over the same information that sometimes I think we do too much of, not so much on the CAG, but we got information brought forward to us that is the same and the same.  This is targeting new stuff that we really need to hear.  So I just really want to thank the Toxics Committee.

MS. WALLIS:  Now that the Toxics Committee has concluded its report, the next item on the agenda is public comment.  And we did have a question already started. 

MS. LICHTERMAN:  I asked the question.

MS. WALLIS:  The question is on the record. 

MR. BRODERSEN:  I'll answer that.  This is Jason Brodersen.  Stacy Haynes is the woman who is our on‑site biologist, and I probably talk to her and meet with her two or three times a week.  She hasn't mentioned anything about seeing anything in terms of the new or existing plants in the restoration area.  In terms of how they would relate to the adverse findings in the PEEIR report, the PEEIR report was done, and I believe they studied all of that area before the cleanup.  So the levels should be different.  I mean, is that ‑‑ I want to clarify is that is my understanding.  All of the adverse effects on the fish and on the biota was all before the cleanup action. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  No.  Your cleanup started in 1999, 2003. 

MR. BRODERSEN:  2002.  End of 2002, 2003, 2004. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Their study wasn't over until 2005.

MR. BRODERSEN:  Their sampling, though, my understanding is that their sampling was completed before we started. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  They had condos within the marsh where these fish are living.  And they are Mud‑sucker condos.  And the condos are replenished from time to time with healthy fish who are then taken and examined for a presence of tumors.  

MR. BRODERSEN:  That is pretty interesting.  If that is the case, we are not aware of that in 2005.  We are actually trying to meet with them ‑‑

DR. ESPOSITO:  That would be good.  Maybe the condos have been replaced with highrises.   

MR. HAET:  The PEEIR study, as far as I know, is no longer going on.  We met with the PEEIR group probably three or four years ago now.  And they had already been in an active data collection phase at that point.  They presented their findings to us, and, actually, I think the DTSC meeting, I believe the PEEIR meeting that Barbara spoke about last month, we were at that same meeting.  And we are very interested in what they had to say and their findings.  And I think the conclusion was ‑‑ we asked them how can we use this information to help our cleanup, and they said, "You can't."  

It is ‑‑ so, I mean, we didn't get anything practical out of that.  We would have liked to get something practical out of that to help drive the cleanup.  This is cutting edge research, and I am sure some good will come out of it that will have practical applications.  

MS. WALLIS:  Another question or comment?  Please identify yourself for the transcriptionist.

MR. WEINER:  My name is Peter Weiner.  My impression from the presentation at Stege Marsh ‑‑ and I am going to ask you about east and west.  I know you might not be doing both.  My impression is that if I had to report your views on it, and I know there were questions, but your views would be that the parts that you have cleaned up are pretty clean.  The marsh as a whole is still impaired, that the marsh as a whole is still fairly polluted in the areas that haven't been cleaned up.  And that is kind of the way it is; is that correct? 

MR. BRODERSEN:  You know, we are only sampling in those areas that were remediated.  We are not sampling in areas that weren't.  My understanding is that we remediated these areas because those were the worst and the hottest.  And there were some questions by the agencies that we have to enter a discussion about balance between destroying habitat versus removing contaminants.  Nobody has made a decision on that, but that hasn't been resolved yet.  So all we are doing is sampling in the area we have remediated.  All we are doing is speculating on mechanisms and sources at this point.  I wasn't trying to make any conclusions.  In terms of the eastern Stege Marsh, I have no idea.  We are not trying to draw any links.  They are not hydraulically connected.  I am only reporting on the western Stege Marsh.  Did that answer your question or not?  

MR. WEINER:  I think the answer is you can't answer the question, which is fine.  You are not looking at it.  

MR. BRODERSEN:  Can you rephrase it?  I think we can answer it.  Can you rephrase it?  You are asking if we think western Stege Marsh is clean?  Is that the question?  

MR. WEINER:  My impression from what you were looking at is that you were looking at the areas that were remediated.  And Sherry Padgett mentioned the areas that were not remediated that are still polluted.  But those are not areas that you are sampling.  And there may be a question as to whether contaminants from the unremediated part are getting onto the remediated part.  You may feel confident about your sampling of that and you may not.  

As to the other unremediated part, there may be a balance of preserving various underwater channels and so on rather than remediating, but that is an issue.  And the fact is whether one does it ‑‑ whether one makes that, quote, "balance," unquote decision or not, it is pretty contaminated.  You wouldn't know that because you are not sampling; is that is correct? 

MR. BRODERSEN:  That is correct.  I think the more accurate way of portraying that is the eastern side of western Stege Marsh is way ahead of the other element.  There has been sampling there, and in terms of selecting a remedy and characterizing in that area, we're just not there yet.  

MR. WEINER:  What I am trying to think about is not about the on‑shore impacts, for example, on workers, which is, of course, a different standard from kids or residential or whatever, but rather I am trying to think of the impact on other aspects of life in San Francisco Bay, which may or may not be impacted by Stege Marsh.  That is not about human health.  That is about the environment.  Different issue.  I was just trying to see whether you had something to report on that.  My sense is that is not what you are looking at.  And that wasn't a challenge.

MR. HAET:  I think just to kind of sum it up, we have sampled in that area.  We have removed the portions of the marsh which we felt and the Agency felt were worst, the source areas.  We are looking at the rest of the marsh and the rest of the marsh is under study right now.  It is an issue that hasn't been resolved yet.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  I see one and two indications of interest.  Please identify yourself.  

MS. THOMPSON:  Glennis Thompson.  Jason, I had a question for you in terms of when you showed the slides with the arsenic.  You said there was one point which was 500.  Where was that point? 

MR. BRODERSEN:  I don't know.  We could probably find it.  That wasn't my company that sampled it.  And they identified it as an outlier, and it wasn't qualified by the lab.  There is no reason to think that it wasn't necessarily 500.  You can speculate where that came from, whether it was a cinder that somehow came down.  The cinders are the primary source of arsenic.  It is not uncommon when you are doing a metal sampling to find outliers.  That is a pretty high outlier, though.  They removed it from their study.  I didn't feel it was appropriate to remove it because the lab didn't say it was rejected, so I included it.

DR. RABOVSKY:  Going back to the presentation, Jason ‑‑ you seem to be on the hotline here.  I think maybe I am missing a point here when you talk about going down between three and six inches, particularly for worker safety.  And these are workers, as I understood it, that are going through the replanting of the marsh.  Is that correct?  Did I understand?  Maybe I misunderstood that.  The reason I am asking is I am thinking about putting plants into the ground.  I am not an agricultural person, but when I am home and put a plant into the ground I am not just going down just three or six inches.  And I can't put all of this together.  

MR. BRODERSEN:  Well, we consulted with the people doing the planting.  And these are not big plants.  These are seedlings.  We asked them where do they spend most of their time in the marsh in terms of depth, and that's what they told us to sample. 

DR. RABOVSKY:  That's what you were told.  It still seems a little strange.  Plants put roots down, and I think they probably go down more than three inches.  

MR. BRODERSEN:  Sure.  I mean, what we are really trying to do ‑‑ 

DR. RABOVSKY:  You are talking about safety of the workers.  Okay.  You answered that question.  The other point I want to bring up, constantly when they deal with PCBs and there is a comparison with some sort of level, okay, comparison level, it is the TOSCA level of about 1 milligram per kilogram of soil.  I still don't understand why any group that is concerned about public health uses a TOSCA standard, for which I have never been able to find a basis, when there are public health standards out there that are lower than 1 milligram per kilogram.  I can't give them to you now.  I think I read a letter at one point, a comment letter, but I don't have it with me.  But they are out there.  

So why do we always go back to a TOSCA standard which is nowhere near as health‑protective as the other standards?  You happened to mention it tonight, but it's not just your presentation or your work.  But I see it over and over and over again.  I don't understand why we are using always a TOSCA standard.  

MR. BRODERSEN:  That wasn't a question for me, then, right?

DR. RABOVSKY:  You don't have to answer it, but I would love someone to come to me and say, "This is the basis of the TOSCA standard in terms of a health standard."  And you don't know.  Then that is okay.  

MR. BRODERSEN:  The TOSCA standard doesn't necessarily appear to be risk‑based.  It is hard to find out where it comes from.  There are a lot of different standards.  There is a lot of new technology in terms of trying to figure out what is going on with these congeners.  You look at the congeners, and there are a lot of standards out there.  Our toxicologists, NRCH, does not rely upon the TOSCA standard in terms of worker safety.  They do a lower level.  

DR. RABOVSKY:  Okay.  I heard you.  As I have seen others, not just you, in totally different situations, and they keep going back to that one mg per kg line.  And I still don't know why they are out there when there are others out there more health‑protective.

MS. WALLIS:  We are about five minutes away from the ten‑minute extension that was voted on by the CAG.  We do have an additional agenda item to get to wrap‑up, and approval of the meeting minutes.  So I will move on if I don't hear any objection.  I will move on from the public comment.  All right.  I am seeing heads nodding up and down, so I will give the microphone to Ms. Graves for minute approval.

MS. GRAVES:  We actually have three months of minutes to hopefully get through and approve, December, January, and February.  All of these have been e‑mailed out to the CAG, and I have tried to give hard copies to those members that don't have e‑mail each month.  At the pleasure of the CAG, I would just like to do one motion to approve all three months unless there is anybody that has any discussion on any of them.  Seeing no hands for discussion, all in favor to approve the last three months of minutes?  Any opposed?  Motion passes.  Thank you.  

We got some Q‑slips last month.  It was a very busy month, so I am just going to postpone that until next month, and we'll get back to the people that submitted those.  Thank you. 

MS. WALLIS:  And thank you for the reminder.  If there is anyone on the CAG or in the audience who has an outstanding question or comment to submit, please make sure that you give it to Ms. Graves before you leave tonight, and there will be follow up on those.  Our next meeting is going to be Thursday April 10th in this same place.  So we look forward to your participation then.  Any final comments from anyone on the CAG before we close? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  The next Toxics Committee meeting is a week from today in the Shimada Room at 7:00 p.m. 

MR. ROBINSON:  The meeting is closed.  Good night.  Thank you for coming.  
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